
































































































































































































From: Kristen Butler
To: Gooch, Vickie
Subject: Updated Documents & Invoices
Date: Friday, June 14, 2024 11:42:48 AM
Attachments: image001.png

2024-06-14 Memo.pdf
CC Statements - Combined.xlsx

Vickie,
 
Attached is an updated Memo and Spreadsheet.  The only material change is that I had two
vehicle rentals for the same conference, which was not correct, I re-reviewed the invoice it
was for a different date/conference.
 
I’m sending a share file for the invoices I pulled out.  It’s too big to email.
 
 
Kristen Butler, CPA
Financial Examiner/Investigator
Monday-Friday 7am – 3:30pm
Phone:(208) 332-8073 • Fax:  (208) 332-8099
Mailing:  P.O. Box 83720, Boise, ID 83720-0031
Physical:  11341 West Chinden Blvd., Building 4, Floor 3, Boise, ID  83714
 

 
NOTICE: This message and any related attachments are intended solely for the use of the addressee and may contain
privileged and confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient, or otherwise responsible for delivering this
message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, or other use of this message or
its attachments is prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately and please
delete it from your computer.

 

















































 

SECURITIES BUREAU 
Bureau Chief – John Yaros 

11341 West Chinden Blvd., Building 4, Floor 3, Boise, ID  83714 
Mail To:  P.O. Box 83720, Boise ID 83720-0031 
Phone: (208) 332-8000 • Fax: (208) 332-8099 

http://finance.idaho.gov 
 

PROTECTING THE INTEGRITY OF IDAHO FINANCIAL MARKETS SINCE 1905 

 BRAD LITTLE  
 Governor 

 
PATRICIA R. PERKINS 
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MEMORANDUM 

To:  Vickie Gooch – vickie.gooch@isp.idaho.gov 
From:  Kristen Butler – kristen.butler@finance.idaho.gov  
Date:  June 14, 2024 
Subject:  Mr. Ingram 

The purpose of this memo is to provide my analysis of Mr. Ingram’s purchases on his state 
issued credit card regarding event expenses.  Questioned transactions are noted in the attached 
spreadsheet and many are flagged below.  A review of Caldwell Police Department’s policies 
and procedures may show these purchases were allowable expenditures. 
 
Personal – Four transactions appeared to be personal purchases: 

 Apple Instagram account. 
**Ref:  11/23/23 for $14.99, 12/23/23 for $14.99, and 12/25/23 for $10.99 

 Christmas party tickets for Messrs. Ingram and Sopoaga’s spouses. 
**Ref:  9/5/23 for $103 – 12/9/23 6pm Code 3 to 1 - Tickets for Venissa Ingram & Stacy Sopoaga 

 
Per Diem – It is primarily unknown if events provided meals as most agendas were not 
provided, but support was provided showing two events provided meals and per diem was also 
paid out.  Five transactions were of additional interest as food was purchased while traveling and 
per diem might have been requested: 

 Pocatello, Idaho 
**Ref:  10/23/22 for $67.17 – Missing calendar - 10/23/22 FBI Command College 

 Out of Idaho 
**Ref:  10/25/22 for $250.25 – Missing calendar - 10/23/22 FBI Command College 
**Ref:  11/3/22 for $363.40 – Missing calendar - 11/2/22-11/4/22 WA DC UVC 
**Ref:  6/22/23 for $155.75 – 6/22/23-6/23/23 Driving back to ID from S. CA w/ AC Truck 
**Ref:  4/4/24 for $128.73 – 3/14/24-3/16/24 WA DC NA Graduation 
 

Hotel – One trip was of interest as Messrs. Ingram and Sopoaga booked and paid for a hotel 
room one day prior to their arrival date.  It is unknown why 5-6 days of travel were needed for a 
graduation, but Mr. Ingrams reservation supports his room was booked for two persons.   

**Ref:  7/20/23 for $312.84 – 11/8/23-11/13/23 FL NIA Graduation 
**Ref:  8/29/23 for $382.30 – 11/8/23-11/13/23 FL NIA Graduation 
**Ref:  11/9/23 for $639.76 – 11/8/23-11/13/23 FL NIA Graduation 
**Ref:  11/9/23 for $550.45 – 11/8/23-11/13/23 FL NIA Graduation 



 

2 

 
Flights – Various airline flights were questioned due to flight dates.  Three trips were of 
additional interest: 

 Upgraded flight seat assignment for both Messrs. Ingram and Sopoaga. 
**Ref:  10/14/22 for $46 (two transactions) – Missing calendar - 11/2/22-11/4/22 WA DC UVC 

 Three flights for both Messrs. Ingram and Wright for the same trip were booked.  Also, 
why was the Chief tasked with this assignment and why were two people needed? 
**Ref:  5/23/23 for $178.20 (two transactions)– 6/22/23-6/23/23 Driving back to ID from S. CA w/ AC 
Truck - Ingram 
**Ref:  6/9/23/23 for $264 (two transactions)– 6/22/23-6/23/23 Driving back to ID from S. CA w/ AC 
Truck - Ingram 
**Ref:  6/21/23 for $209.98 (two transactions)– 6/22/23-6/23/23 Driving back to ID from S. CA w/ AC 
Truck - Ingram 

 Two flights for the same trip were booked including a date change. 
**Ref:  12/9/23 for $462.96 – 3/14/24-3/16/24 WA DC NA Graduation 
**Ref:  1/14/24 for $378 – 3/14/24-3/16/24 WA DC NA Graduation 
**Ref:  3/13/24 for $1,145.61 – 3/14/24-3/16/24 WA DC NA Graduation 
**Ref:  3/13/24 refund for $362.98 – 3/14/24-3/16/24 WA DC NA Graduation 

 
Vehicle Rentals –It is primarily unknown if Mr. Ingram stayed at the same hotel the event was 
held – Many invoices included add on such as pre-paid fuel, insurance/roadside assistance, toll 
passes, and upgraded vehicles.  Five transactions were of additional interest: 

 Messrs. Ingram and Winfield both stayed at the conference hotel. 
**Ref:  10/4/22 for $609.56 and 11/17/22 for $113.24 – Missing calendar - 11/14/22-11/17/22 CA IAPRO 

 Vehicle picked up the day before flight and invoiced to Mr. and Mrs. Ingram. 
**Ref:  8/29/23 for $475.85 and 11/13/23 for $339.01 – 11/8/23-11/13/23 FL NIA Graduation 

 Vehicle expenses were contested by City Hall. 
**Ref: 10/12/23 for $834.43 and 10/18/23 for $2,126.05 – 10/13/23-10/18/23 CA IACP 

 Rental period exceeded business travel period. 
**Ref:  1/17/24 for $96 and 1/28/24 for $619.54 – 1/21/24-1/26/24 LA, CA NPD Command 

 Receipt for gas but no corresponding vehicle rental. 
**Ref:  2/22/24 – 2/19/24-2/22/24 IN Notre Dame 

 
Not on Calendar – One hotel transaction was of interest as there were no corresponding 
expenses for this travel. 

**Ref: 3/9/23 for $455.48 – Not on calendar – 3/5/23-3-9-23 – Reno, NV 
 
Missing Calendar – Mr. Ingram’s calendars were not provided for the dates listed below and 
expenses could not be verified with corresponding events. 

 September 13, 2022 – December 13, 2022 
 January 5, 2023 – January 30, 2023 
 May 1, 2024 – present  

 
Missing Invoices – Many expenses did not have supporting documents or the documents 
provided were receipts/reservations which did not indicate what was specially purchased. 
 
Other – Additional thing to be aware of: 
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 Most transactions on the General Ledger Detail cannot be tied to transaction on the 
statements based on the amount.  Additionally, it is unknown where the JE dates originate 
from.  

 Many transactions for food, events, and sponsorships – Unknown if there are spending 
limits or if documentation is required to support a business purpose and attendees. 

 Various other questions came up but were not specific to expense and an event attended 
by Mr. Ingram. 

 
Flagged transactions are based on my understanding of what is allowed under the positions and 
agencies I have worked for.  A review of Caldwell Police Department’s policies and procedures 
may show that these are allowable transactions and Mr. Ingram’s position may follow a different 
set of expenditure rules which I am not aware of. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact Kristen Butler at 208-332-8073 
or kristen.butler@finance.idaho.gov. 




